

Meeting Minutes

December 13, 2023

Meeting held via Zoom

COUNCIL ATTENDANCE:	PRESENT	EXCUSED
Johnna Jones, Chairperson	X	
Jim Southwick, Vice-Chair; Tehama County Department of Education	Х	
Jayme Bottke, Tehama County Health Services Agency	Х	
Candy Carlson, Tehama County Board of Supervisors		Х
Jeremiah Fears, Corning Police Department		Х
Kris Deiters, Red Bluff City Council		Х
Gail Locke, General Collaborative Chairperson	Х	
Travis Lyon, Tehama County Health Services	Х	
David Madrigal, Tehama County Community Action Agency	Х	
Kimberlee Monroe, Empower Tehama	Х	
E.C. Ross, Poor and the Homeless Tehama County Coalition (PATH)		Х

Continuum of Care Coordinator: Andrea C. Curry

Notes by: Heather Henderson

Meeting called to order at 1:03 P.M.

1. Welcome and Introductions

2. Additions to the Agenda

Executive Council Membership:

Andrea reported that a letter had been received from PATH stating that as of December 9, 2023, E.C. Ross has retired from his role with PATH. PATH has not yet appointed a replacement to represent them on the Executive Council but plans to do so in the near future. Andrea will remove E.C. from the Executive Council roster.

Additionally, it was discussed since Jeremiah Fears is no longer with Corning Police Department, his name should also be removed from the roster and that outreach should be made to City of Corning to invite them to appoint a new representative.

With these changes to the Executive Council roster, the total number of voting members is eight (8), with the minimum number in attendance to constitute a quorum being five (5).

3. Project Updates:

a. PATH Plaza Update

PATH did not have a representative at this meeting to provide an update. Based on recent reports at other meetings, Andrea reported that PG&E has now been turned on at the site, but that the delay in getting it turned on, along with frequent rainy weather, has pushed out the anticipated completion date. Finishing of the building's interior is currently in progress, as well, but has not yet been completed.

b. Permanent Housing Update

Travis Lyon

Travis reported that Olive Grove Apartments currently has two vacancies, which TCHSA is working on filling through Coordinated Entry. No Place Like Home (NPLH) funding has been awarded for the two projects planned for Red Bluff (Palm Villas and The Bluffs), and the partners are currently seeking the additional funding needed to move forward with these two projects.

c. Stakeholders' Collaborative

Heather Henderson

Heather reported that the next quarterly meeting is scheduled for January 3, 2024. There are two presentations planned for that meeting. On the agenda for that meeting are an informational presentation from Disability Action Center and an interactive discussion to be facilitated by Jess Candela from Housing Tools on development of the Regionally Coordinated Homeless Action Plan, which is a requirement of the joint application process for HHAP-5 funding.

d. HMIS/CES

CES: Andrea reported that 2-1-1 Tehama, which is coordinated by United Way of Northern California (UWNC), has recently switched call centers. Andrea and Heather have met with the new call center, Connecting Point, and are impressed with their experience and understanding of Coordinated Entry. Connecting Point staff have now been trained on entering assessments into Tehama CES and have already begun submitting caller assessments.

HMIS: Andrea reported that the CoC's HMIS vendor, Bonterra, had experienced significant difficulties updating the system to meet HUD's new 2024 HMIS Data Standards, which have impacted the CoC's ability to generate reports required by Cal ICH and HUD. As a result, the report that was due to Cal ICH for the Homeless Data Integration System (HDIS) on November 18, 2023 could not be generated or uploaded. Andrea has been in touch with the HMIS lead for Lake County CoC, who uses the same vendor and has confirmed that they are also unable to generate the required support. On December 12, Cal ICH issued formal letters to both Tehama CoC and Lake County CoC that due to failure to submit the most recent HDIS upload, both CoCs' data will be excluded from upcoming update to the state's HDIS dashboard. Additionally, Cal ICH is currently unable to verify whether grantees of state funded homelessness programs pursuant to AB 977 operating in Tehama County are submitting the data required by Welfare and Institutions Code section 8256, subdivision (d), because that compliance is confirmed via the same HDIS upload. The Cal ICH letter also states that these issues will be resolved once the Tehama County CoC properly and accurately uploads data for October 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023-due on February 12th, 2024. Andrea is working closely with the vendor and anticipates that the vendor will have the issues resolved by February 12, 2024, and the next required upload should be able to be submitted. There is one additional report due soon – the annual Longitudinal Systems Analysis (LSA) report, which is due to HUD no later than January 17, 2024. Andrea reported that to date, she is unable to successfully pull this report from the system but will continue working with the vendor and hopes to be able to run the LSA and submit that report on time.

4. Executive Council Meeting Scheduling

a. Monthly Meeting Schedule

The council seeks to change its regular monthly meeting date to allow more members to attend. As today's meeting, the date for which was identified through polling council members' availability for the month of December, falls on the second Tuesday of the month at 1:00 PM, Andrea suggested that the council keep this schedule throughout 2024.

A discussion took place through which the council agreed that January's meeting be scheduled for the **second Tuesday** at **1:30** PM (January 10, 2024) make sure it ends up working out for everyone, then revisit at January's meeting. Andrea will send out a meeting invite for the January 2024 meeting for January 10, 2024 at 1:30 PM.

5. CoC Coordination and Strategic Planning

Andrea Curry

a. Financial Report

Andrea provided an update on the grant funding being administered by the CoC through its Administrative Entity and currently open subgrants as of November 30, 2023.

6. Capacity Building

Andrea Curry

a. Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Round 5

i. Housing Tools Proposal Revision to include HHAP-5 Activities

Andrea reported that the California Interagency Council on Homelessness (Cal ICH) released the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for Round 5 of the Homeless Housing Assistance and Prevention Program (HHAP-5) on September 29, 2023. The HHAP-5 NOFA includes requirements similar to, but even more expansive than, those required by the HHAP-3 NOFA, including development of a Regionally Coordinated Homeless Action Plan. Andrea requested that Housing Tools, who assisted Tehama CoC with its HHAP-3 requirements, propose amendments to the recently approved agreement for consulting services to include assisting with the HHAP-5 requirements. A mark-up version of the current agreement with proposed revisions was provided to the council ahead of this meeting for review.

Motion: A motion was made to authorize The Vitality Project to sign revised Housing Tools Proposal for Fiscal Years 2023-24, 2024-25 and 2025-26 Scope of Services, as presented.

Moved by: Gail Locke Seconded by: David Madrigal Ayes: Johnna Jones, Jayme Bottke, Gail Locke, David Madrigal, Kimberlee Monroe, Jim Southwick Noes: None Abstentions: None Result: APPROVED

b. Local Project Funding

i. Tehama CoC Homelessness Assistance and Response Program (HARP) RFP To be released December 15, 2023

Andrea reported that the Request for Proposals for ongoing funding through grants administered by the CoC is close to ready to release. Currently, TVP is waiting on some updates from current grantees to determine how much, if any, funding from the previous round of funding will remain unexpended so that these funds can be included in the upcoming RFP. Once these updates have been received, the RFP will be released. Andrea hopes to have the updates in the next few days.

- ii. Requests to Allocate Funds:
 - 1. TCDE Practical Supports for Homeless Students

Tehama County Department of Education Foster/Homeless program received one-time funding through the American Rescue Plan -Homeless Children and Youth (ARP-HCY) program that allowed them to include providing clothing for students McKinney-Vento identified homeless youth throughout Tehama County in their service menu. The need for this service was significant enough, though, that the ARP-HCY funding supporting has already been fully expended. TCDE is seeking funding through other sources to continue to meet this need. As a result of having met its initial goals and all reporting obligations under the Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) program, Tehama CoC has been notified of its eligibility to receive additional HHIP funding through HealthNet, the parent company of Medi-Cal Managed Care Plan California Health and Wellness. Upon request from CoC staff, HealthNet has agreed to include a new line item in the budget for these funds that allocates \$25,000 to providing practical supports for students experiencing homelessness. Based on the specificity of the budget line item description, CoC staff requests authorization to award the entirety of the \$25,000 in HealthNet HHIP funds to TCDE's Education for Homeless Children and Youth (EHCY) program to fill the gap left when ARP-HCY were exhausted, and if needed, to fill any other need identified that is consistent with the line item description.

Motion: A motion was made to authorize award of \$25,000 in HealthNet HHIP funds to Tehama County Department of Education Foster/Homeless Program to support practical supports for students experiencing homelessness in Tehama County.

Moved by: Gail Locke Seconded by: Jayme Bottke Ayes: Johnna Jones, Jayme Bottke, Gail Locke, David Madrigal, Kimberlee Monroe Noes: None Abstentions: Jim Southwick Result: APPROVED

2. Compensating People with Lived Experience

Andrea provided an update on the CoC's participation in the California Racial Equity Action Lab (Cal REAL), including the Core Team's identification of its "Grand Challenge" of "develop[ing] a racially equitable system for incorporating the voices of people with lived experience in system design." To meet this challenge, the Core Team has identified two primary activities: developing a framework for a Lived Experience Advisory Board (LEAB) and developing alternative opportunities for people with lived experience to provide input on system design, through surveys, focus groups, and other methods. The Core Team shares the viewpoint of the Cal REAL initiative and its sponsor, Cal ICH, that people with lived experience should be compensated appropriately for these commitments. The Core Team has developed a budget and proposal for providing this compensation, which was provided to council member for review ahead of this meeting.

Motion: Authorize award of \$16,000 in HHAP and/or HealthNet HHIP funds to compensate people with lived experience for participation in Lived Experience Advisory Board (LEAB) participation and/or "Speak Up" opportunities.

Moved by: Jim Southwick Seconded by: Gail Locke Ayes: Johnna Jones, Jayme Bottke, Gail Locke, David Madrigal, Kimberlee Monroe, Jim Southwick Noes: None Abstentions: None Result: APPROVED

7. Additional Discussion/Announcements

Behavioral Health – Mobile Crisis Response

Jayme reported that as of January 1, 2024, Tehama County Health Services – Behavioral Health will implement mobile crisis response services in lieu of operating crisis response services in their stationary location on the TCHSA Walnut campus. This change is in response to a new state mandate. The goal of this model is to assist individuals experiencing mental health crises where they're at and provide connections to mental health services.

Meeting adjourned at 2:17 PM.

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 10, 204, at 1:00 PM and will be held via Zoom.